OFFICE OF THE SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS
Peterborough, New Hampshire

CONTOOCOOK VALLEY SCHOOL BOARD
EDUCATION COMMITTEE

Monday, May 21, 2007
7:00 pm
SAU Office

MINUTES

Attendees: Beverly Bacon, Stewart Brock, Bart Goodeve, Bill McKinnon,
Tom Welden, Mary Allen, Marian Alese, Linda Potter, Sue
Dell

Beverly Bacon called the meeting to order at 7:02 p.m. She thanked
everyone for coming tonight.

1. Approval of Minutes

¥ Meeting of March 5, 2007
Stewart moved to accept the minutes of the March 5, 2007 meeting. Tom
Welden second. Beverly Bacon and Stewart Brock abstained. All else in
favor.

2. Timeline for Ongoing Education Committee Items

Beverly Bacon distributed a copy of the Education Committee Timeline. (See
Attachment #1) The list would be discussed from the bottom up beginning
with ATC — Update on course offerings. Beverly said that Keith Burke
notified her today that Linda Potter will be taking charge of the Education
Committee.

Beverly said that Christy mentioned at the last meeting that it would be a
good idea for Chet Bowles to provide an update on the ATC courses.

Bart Goodeve said that he thought that Chet is more than happy to provide
information if he knows why we are seeking it.

Linda Potter said that people were curious about updates but also want to
know why we are turning students away from courses.

Bart said that it should be addressed but he does not have a sense of what
the real subscription pressure is. Chet could provide his sense.

Sue Dell said that there hasn’t been a lot of change yet. The change being
spoken of is the “Corner of the House” program but it is not yet a program to
offer. In addition, we have just completed reviewing those students that have
requested courses.

Bart asked if this item should even be on the agenda.



Tom said that it should be on the agenda because the “Corner of the House”
program was supposed to be in place for September.

Beverly asked if students have already made their schedules out how this
program would come into play.

Sue Dell said that a number of students have requested woodworking with
the inability to get it. In addition, students have been unable to get into
Building Trades and could get into the “Corner of the House”.

Mary Allen said that it would be good for Chet to report to the Education
Committee quarterly. If students requests continue to go unfilled that
information would help with budget purposes.

Bart said that when looking at last year, we had meetings that would lose one
hour to ninety minutes where we would go nowhere. He said if it isn’t broken,
don’t fix it. We have limited capacity to deal with some of these issues.

Tom said that he feels that it is broken and that we are not living up to the
expectations. Bart said that he would like to hear the numbers. Tom said
that the child education program has been a broken program and he would
like to know more about continuity and how the programs are going.

Beverly said that maybe Chet could have a timeline for us so that things can
be marked off.

Linda Potter said that it is her hope to have an action plan. In addition, she
has spoken with Crotched Mountain who has just completed building space
for an automotive program. She is hoping to reach out and access the space
with regular education students.

Marian Alese said that what we want to know is what is happening to the
Alternative Program space moving and with the Cosmetology program.
Stewart Brock said that he would like to task Chet with a yearly review of what
students want. Cosmetology has been bubbling up for a little while. We
might be able to get ahead and meet the needs a little better.

Tom said that the “Corner of the House” is a split project with teachers
teaching at both schools. Bart said that he would like to know how many
students are turned away from courses.

Special Education Program Review — Linda Potter said that this is not one
of the higher priorities. Linda said that we can look at the changes. Things
are working well and pretty smooth.

LEIP Plan — Linda said it is a plan that has been in effect for five years. Itis
the last year of the plan. We need to look at it again. Beverly said that the
LEIP Plan is on the web.

Mary Allen asked for an overview of the plan. Is it worthwhile?

Stewart asked why we do it.

Linda Potter said that our master plan is based around the plan. It is a long
term educational improvement plan. Goals are based on it. Six goals are in
the plan. Linda said that when the plan comes to an end, minor changes or
major changes can be made.

Marian said that the School Board goals are based on the LEIP Plan.



Stewart asked who gets tasked with updating it or measuring the progress.
Marian said that she suspected that it would be the Superintendent. All plans
relate back to the district plan.

Linda said that there are indicators for everything.

Mary Allen asked if there were any areas that appeared outdated. Linda said
that there were not. Itis clear and broad.

Bart asked what defined the five year period. Linda said that it was the State.
Beverly said that copies will be provided to everyone at the next meeting.
Bart said that it would be helpful for it to be an action item when it appears on
the agenda. It is not productive to just hash it around.

Tom said that the first time we hear about the LEIP it would not be actionable.
Linda said that we are just looking at priorities tonight.

Marian said that Dick Bergeron has asked for lots of stuff including the LEIP
Plan.

NEACAP Report — Beverly said that an update was requested of Keith.
Discussion took place on the various tests administered.

Program Review Process — Linda said that we started program review three
years ago. We did Special Education and it died in the water. We agreed to
look at each of the programs. We began to look at World Language. Linda
said that she would like to come up with a different system of program review
that is not as time consuming.

Bart asked if a quick survey that provided an indication of weaknesses and
successes might be given. Linda said that there are programs that exist. She
would like to move to a more precise model.

Stewart asked if it was worth hiring a consultant to free up the manpower of
those being evaluated. They might bring expertise about specific programs.
Linda said that generally the manpower is spent feeding the consultant, it is
easier to do it ourselves.

Tom suggested that this be tabled for the time. We have a new
Administrative team coming in. We tried to conduct program review but never
got through one program completely. Changes were made but never
analyzed.

Bart said that as long as we provide the new administration with some sense
of what we are looking at.

Mary Allen said that she wants this to be high on Dick’s list.

Bullying Report — Linda provided a copy of the policy (see attachment #2)
and a copy of the report to date (see attachment #3). Linda said that she will
be following the reporting. Training is conducted yearly to help individuals
define bullying.

Bart asked how chronic vs. acute is distinguished. Linda said that it is chronic
that defines the bullying piece. We need to work more on the details.



Tom said that there are different levels. The middle school tends to be more
bullying and the high school tends to have different behavioral issues that
might include bullying.

It was agreed that “chronic” needed to be added to the policy.

The Administrative team will look at this.

Stewart said that he would like to make the public aware of how this will be
addressed.

Senior Survey — Beverly said that it would be good if the Communications
Committee could work with the high school. Stewart agreed. Bart asked for
information about the survey. Sue Dell said that it is a survey one year out
beyond graduation.

Stewart asked for information on the survey we currently use. Sue said that
there is an aspiration survey conducted at the end of senior year. That does
not provide the information we are looking for. A plan was proposed that
could be put into effect in the upcoming year that covered the types of things
we were looking for. Sue said that she put money into the high school budget
for the upcoming year.

Tom asked why this stopped. It was the Boards understanding that it had not
stopped. Sue said that she will contact “Futuristics” for cost and survey
information.

Bart asked what is in place to track where our graduates are. Sue Dell said
that we have nothing in place.

Mary said that it may be a constraint. We are going to use the graduate’s
permanent parent addresses.

Sue Dell said that we were unhappy with the last company that we worked
with. Tracking the surveys is the difficult part.

Beverly asked how much money was placed in the budget. Sue thought that
she had $3 — 4 thousand dollars.

Tom said that a mechanism in place would also help the alumni relations.

NEAS&C — Sue distributed a handout. (See attachment # 4)

Sue Dell said that the original NEAS&C report is on the web under the high
school section. Sue said that the original report submitted in 2005 was
responded to. (See November 7, 2005 letter attachment #5) as well as a
special progress report: One Year (see attachment #6) In addition, NEAS&C
responded to the year one report. Emphasis was placed in accommodations
needed for the year two report. The high school is in the process of putting a
number of things in place to meet the recommendations in the report. Sue
said that there is a short cut report that lists everything on one page in terms
of what is being worked on. She added that the rubrics have been revised.
She hoped to have that discussion in June. Tom said that the Board will need
to take action therefore discussion will take place there.

Marian said that we are on schedule with ADA according to the original plan.
Bart questioned if the capital project was getting bigger rather than the



original issue. Marian said that she expressed concern that the focus needed
to be on NEAS&C report.

Tom said that the matter of time spent on a mission statement that doesn’t
mean a lot to many people at the expense of the meat of the report is of
concern. There are items such as the technology piece that should be
addressed before a mission statement. He suggested that we go after the
highlighted items. Tom would like to see a list of the substantive items.

Sue said that there are a number of things that have been worked on that
have not come up in conversation. She thought that Tom would be pleased
to know of them.

Tom said that on a scale of one to ten, the mission statement is a one or two
and not a ten as the NEAS&C Committee thought it was.

World Language Review — Linda suggested that we start with scratch on
this item. If we are going to have a new system we could do this under that
system. Mary Allen said that having the review was good. She is not seeing
where it is broken. Mary added that we might want to consider Mandarin
Chinese but is concerned with how the middle schools are handling world
language. She suggested that we drill down deeper with one language. Mary
said that she does not see this as a problem.

Bart said that it came up because it was at risk. We learned that there may
be some things that we can do better. Mary said that she does not hear
anybody asking to cut back on anything but that we should make it better.
Tom said that we need to consider why we have programs in place. He
agreed that the middle school program was weak. We can do better. He
would rather see one language in the middle school, brought down to the
elementary school and do it better. He said that we have an excellent
German program and we need to continue. Tom said that it would make
sense to review the broad scope of the program. Bart said that he worried
that Pandora’s box would be open.

Beverly asked if learning a foreign language was ever a requirement. Bill
McKinnon said that it is not appropriate for all students. Debate took place.
Stewart said that any type of program review should take place K through 12.
Some areas improve when beginning at K and go through 12.

Mary Allen said that this speaks to the graduate survey as well. We might
ask if a graduate has had the need to know a foreign language in their work.
Marian said that this discussion is the same when Education started the
process. It was originally from a financial standpoint and not an educational
one. She said that programs were looked at for emotional reasons. She
suggested that we start with what we have and determine where we want to
go.

Linda said that we do this through the system that we are going to use. The
process is followed through and some of the emotion is eliminated.

Beverly said that we want a new system with World Language Review.



Technology Committee — Beverly said that she could not determine if the
committee Ray will head up will be small in size. Tom said that the layout and
goals will be in place by June. Itis an Ad-Hoc committee.

Bart said that the exploration goes down the hardware path and the utilization
path. Education utilization is also a consideration. It needs to be unbundled.
Sue Dell said that we have a new technology plan that is accepted by the
State.

Graduation Requirements — Sue Dell said that the core courses are set.
Competencies are being worked on. Alternate credits are in place for
physical education relative to varsity and junior varsity sports. It will be
expanded into the communities and into other areas. We need to be careful
what type of evaluation we accept.

Tom said that if someone worked on an enhanced area on the Robotics team
they might earn credit. He asked for a timetable for discussion purposes
when this might take place. Competencies will be in place by the end of
2008.

Bart asked if there was anything that provided a template for self directed
courses of study. Sue said that this is one of the things that might happen as
a result of this.

Beverly said that grading schedule refers to how the grades receive certain
credit. Why does a student receive the same credit for a “C” as one receiving
a“B™?

Block Scheduling — does it meet the needs of our students? Sue Dell said
that CVLT cannot take on one more thing. Bart asked if block scheduling put
limits in place. Tom said that we are a regional school. If we changed things
radically the other districts would have problems with scheduling. Itis more
complex but worthwhile looking at.

Linda said that the initiatives taking place in each building should be brought
to the attention of the Board. She would like to provide an understanding of
all that our schools are doing.

Mary said that it was helpful to provide presentations. For example, she said
that she would have no idea what MAPS testing was would it not have been
for the presentation. Bart suggested that this information be better brought
forward during the Principal portion of a Board meeting.

Beverly said that the credit requirements for graduation are still out there.
She would like to get the new Superintendent’s take on this.

Bart said that we need to speak with admissions counselors and find out
more about this. Tom said that many schools require twenty credits to
graduate. Bart said that he would like to know what the transition was for
students affected by this.

Mary Allen said that we need to keep an eye on the State. Keeping track of
the opportunity to offer a differentiated diploma is important.

Linda said that one of the citations on the Special Education review was that
a diploma policy was needed for special education students. She would like
to bring something forward that the Board might accept so that she can move



forward. Students with disabilities should have equal opportunity to earn a
high school diploma.

Tom said that he doesn’t mind giving a high school diploma to someone who
has earned it.

Beverly said that in keeping with graduation requirements, discussion took
place on working with the middle schools. Discussion occurred about
Lynnette Fagnan working with each of the sophomores.

3. Other

Sue said that the Resource Officer should come back to the table at the
Board level. In addition, attendance policy should be reviewed. Sue said
that fundraising should be discussed. Global concerns are of great interest at
the high school with fundraising.

Linda Potter provided an update on tardies at the high school.

The next Education Committee was set for June 18, 2007.

School Board will Be June 5™ and 19".

Beverly adjourned tonight’s meeting at 9:05 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Brenda Marschok



